2315 McIntyre Street, No. 307, Regina, SK S4P 3Y8

# Annual Report 2010-2011

# **Table of Contents**

# 2010-2011 Executive Council

# APCPS at a Glance

# Officer's Reports

- \*\* President
- \*\* President-Elect
- : Membership Chair
- Treasurer
- Communications/Public Relations Chair
- # Education Chair
- : Program Chair
- Secretary
- \*\* APCPS/CAPS Student Representative

# Past Presidents

# **Awards**

Attachments: 2010 Financial Statement

# 2010 - 2011 Executive Council

President: Paula Kotasek PPS MCIP
President-Elect: Karen Bolton PPS MCIP
Membership Chair: Jennifer Taylor PPS MCIP

Membership Chair:

Treasurer:

Communications/Public Relations Chair:

Education Chair:

Jennifer Taylor PPS MCIP

Ryan Walker PPS MCIP

Autumn Dawson PPS MCIP

Doug Daniels PPS MCIP

Program Chair: Kendra Raymond

Secretary: Bill Delainey PPS MCIP

APCPS/CAPS Student Representative: Ian Goeres

Member at Large: Sheldon Clarke PPS MCIP Member at Large: Jason Kaptein PPS MCIP

Executive Director: Marilyn Steranka

# **APCPS** at a Glance

APCPS was incorporated in 1963 by enactment of 'The Community Planning Profession Act.'

The goals of the Association are:

- To ensure to the public the proficiency and competence of professional community planners in the practice of professional community planning
- To promote and improve the proficiency and competence of professional community planners in any matter relating to professional community planning
- To do all or any of such things as may promote the usefulness of professional community planners to the public. APCPS is an affiliate of the Canadian Institute of Planners (CIP)

There are four main documents that govern the operation of APCPS:

- The Community Planning Profession Act, being Chapter C-21, R.S.S.
- APCPS Bylaw No. 5 (Operations)
- APCPS Bylaw No. 2 (Code of Professional Conduct)
- Affiliate Agreement between CIP and APCPS

The University of Saskatchewan offers a CIP–recognized undergraduate program called the Regional and Urban Planning (RUP) program. The University of Saskatchewan also administers the examination for those applying for full membership.

In 1993, the Work Study program was introduced to the RUP program offered at the University of Saskatchewan. Employers who may offer work-study positions should contact the Education Chair for further information.

Full members of the Association are encouraged to use the exclusive designation PPS (Professional Planner–Saskatchewan) and MCIP (Member–Canadian Institute of Planners) to identify their membership in the Association and CIP. Seals bearing the Certificate number of the respective member are also available (at cost) from the membership registrar.

# **Officers Reports**

# <u>President</u>

My first year as APCPS President has passed very quickly. APCPS Council continues to work on implementation for the National Membership Standards for the Planning for the Future Project. Bylaw amendments to CIP bylaws recently passed, therefore implementation at the affiliate level will now begin. Bill Delainey has taken on the task of preparing bylaw amendments for APCPS and following those amendments we will be forwarding Municipal Affairs the requesting changes to the Planning Professions Act.

Congratulations to Broadway Avenue as a winner in the Great Places in Canada contest! There were a number of entries from Saskatchewan and it is great to have a winner from this great and beautiful province.

Special thanks to the logbook and exam committees for all of their hard work this year. It has been a very busy year for membership. Thanks also to all members who volunteer for APCPS Council and Committees, sit as representatives on CIP Committees and the University Senates and to all members that support APCPS by attending workshops and conferences. The success of APCPS depends on the participation of our members.

Paula Kotasek PPS MCIP

# **President-Elect**

My first year on CIP National Council has been incredibly interesting and exciting. The business of CIP, as a collaborative national federation is amazingly diverse and often complex. This past year has broadened my understanding of CIPs role in leading progress and change in the planning practice, facilitating the exchange of information and knowledge, addressing issues of importance to the profession and the public, and ensuring professional development. Council extends their appreciation for the huge volunteer effort from members across the country, who works tirelessly to achieve the strategic objectives of the institute. I have also had the opportunity to act as Council liaison for the National Policy Committee, a role I am going to continue this coming year.

Under the leadership of Marni Cappe MCIP, CIP Council and staff have worked very hard to further CIP's strategic goals and objectives, including:

- The *Planning For the Future* project received overwhelming support in May 2011. Affiliates are now in the process of considering complementary amendments to their bylaws to ensure consistency with updated CIP bylaws. The implementation of changes at the affiliate level, the development of a mutual recognition agreement between affiliates, and the establishment of the national Professional Standards Board for the Planning Profession signal a new way of doing business.
- CIP was delighted to recognize Saskatoon's, Broadway Avenue, with its mix of local businesses, public art, and accessible gathering places as one of Canada's great places! Congratulations to the nominees and the winners!
- CIP continues to refine its governance policies to provide guidance to members and chairs serving on national committees in support of key strategic initiatives. I encourage members

to consider participating on these committees; they are a wonderful learning experience, offer new perspectives and often great friendships.

- CIP continues to be represented on the Global Planners Network. This past year has involved work in Guyana, and funding has been received to expand links to China and Central America.
- Funding has been received by Heart and Stroke Canada to research and develop policy to support Healthy Communities. Culture change takes time and the Healthy Communities Committee has made a significant commitment to share information across the country, encouraging dialogue among planners and health professionals.
- A policy paper on water issues has been prepared and is now being reviewed with a view to translating what we know into "on-the-ground" planning practices.
- The Climate Change toolkit funded by NRCan for use by planners in communities across
  the country was unveiled at the CIP conference in Montreal in October 2010 and workshops
  are being offered by various affiliates.
- The 2011 National Conference: MAKING IT WORK Planning in a Connected World took place in July in Saint John's Newfoundland. The conference provided a wonderful opportunity to meet and hear from planning professionals from across Canada and abroad who; irrespective of their roles are all working to enhance the success of communities.

I enter my second year with more knowledge and appreciation for the work we all do and thank the membership for the opportunity to represent you on National Council.

Karen Bolton PPS MCIP

# Membership Chair

This has been another active year for membership in the association. We have seen an increasing number of student and provisional members, and have had several members reach full membership status which has been keeping our Log Book Review and Exam Committees very busy. I would like to sincerely thank the members of these committees for their countless hours of volunteer work spent reviewing log books, marking written exams and conducting oral exams. These members are:

- Laura Hartney, PPS, MCIP
- Darryl Dawson, PPS, MCIP
- Jim Walters, PPS, MCIP
- Dana Kripki, PPS, MCIP
- Leanne DeLong, PPS, MCIP
- Denton Yeo, PPS, MCIP
- Kelley Moore, PPS, MCIP
- Mark Emmons, PPS, MCIP
- Laurent Mougeot, PPS, MCIP

- Brenda Wallace, PPS, MCIP
- Ryan Walker, PPS, MCIP
- Jill Gunn, PPS, MCIP
- Len Kowalko, PPS, MCIP
- Lorne Sully, PPS, MCIP
- Elisabeth Miller, PPS, MCIP
- Jack Billinton, PPS, MCIP
- Blaire Prima, PPS, MCIP

## Planning for the Future

In the spring of 2011, CIP held a national mail ballot for bylaw amendments required to implement the new membership standards developed through the Planning for the Future project. The national membership voted in favour of the changes and now affiliates are expected to make the necessary bylaw amendments to ensure that the new membership standards can be implemented at the affiliate level.

The new membership standards will come into effect in the coming months. Any new applicants after the implementation date will apply directly to the Professional Standards Board (PSB) at the national level. Individuals who were provisional members in good standing prior to the implementation date will, at their discretion, be eligible to complete the membership certification process under the new requirements or to complete their certification based on previously existing requirements. APCPS will be required to continue to accommodate those provisional members that choose to follow the previously existing standards up to a maximum of seven years from the implementation date.

More information on Planning for the Future is available at www.planningincanada.ca.

# 2010-2011 Membership Profile

The APCPS currently comprises 218 members in the following membership categories:

Membership Category	<u>Number</u>
Full	85
Provisional	79
Non-Resident	20
Retired	5
Student	27
Public Associate	2

The following individuals were granted membership during the past year:

#### **Full Members**

- Beatrice Regnier PPS MCIP
- Bonnie Gorelitza PPS MCIP
- Carey Baker PPS MCIP
- Chad Watson PPS MCIP

- Lenore Swystun PPS MCIP
- Cary Tarasoff PPS MCIP
- Dana Schmalz PPS MCIP

#### **Provisional Members**

- Bryan Gray
- Pamela Ewanishin
- Amanda Brinda
- Liberty Walton
- Sarah King
- Tayah Hanson
- Maggie Schwab
- Lars Ketilson
- Michele Friesen
- Mike Velonas
- Marina Melchiorre
- Debra Scholer
- Kevin Sturgeon
- Alan Williams

- Dalton Wudrich
- Bram Noble
- Ada Russell
- Anita Schiller
- Wayne Koethe
- Janet Baker
- Scott Assie
- Keith Folkersen
- Megan Taupadel
- Jason Sick
- John Gyepi-Garbrah
- Melinda Evong
- Katherine Whiting

#### **Student Members**

- Michele Garcea
- Sharif Ibrahim

- Baily Nagy
- Tonii Lerat

- Keri Headdon
- Dustin Bisson
- Ryan Pollard
- Ian Goeres
- Nazli Sammak

- Bethany Cleghorn
- Wing Yeung
- Keith Folkersen
- Riley Stefanik

#### **Non-Resident Members**

- Don Schultz MCIP (APPI)
- Rebecca Row, MCIP (APPI)
- John Wolfenberg MCIP (OPPI)

- Bonnie McInnis MCIP (APPI)
- Chris Elkey MCIP (APPI)

APCPS would like to welcome the following members that have transferred to APCPS during the past year:

- Lauralyn Johnston, from OPPI
- Murray Miller MCIP, from PIBC
- Jenna Mouck, from PIBC
- Blaine Yatabe, from API

APCPS would like to thank the following members for their contribution to planning in Saskatchewan, and wish them success in their planning careers as they have transferred to another affiliate from APCPS during the past year:

- John Wolfenberg, MCIP to OPPI
- Amber Osadan-Ullman to APPI
- Tara Robertson to APPI
- April Abrey, to APPI

Jennifer Taylor PPS MCIP

# **Treasurer**

The 2010 budget met and exceeded forecasted expectations and resulted in a surplus of \$19,636.00 for the 2010 year. Net income from the 2010 AGM and conference at Elk Ridge Lodge, job advertising, and membership applications significantly exceeded the forecasted amount for 2010. Details of expenditures are outlined in the attached 2010 un-audited financial statements.

# Revenue streams included:

- \$10,950 from the APCPS job advertisement site;
- \$11,294 from the 2010 annual general meeting and conference;
- \$6,804 from workshops and programs; and,
- \$1,075.00 from grants.

The grants were comprised of \$1,000 from the Regional and Urban Planning Program, University of Saskatchewan for the periodic intensive degree recognition review and a \$75 private contribution from an APCPS member to the Andy Campbell Award.

Workshops (i.e., Planning for Growth) were a good source of revenue in 2010, though in the year-to-date for 2011 are not meeting forecasted income expectations. Workshops and programs are an area where Council should continue to seek opportunities to generate revenue. They also further the active presence of the APCPS among its membership, private and public sector, and the general public.

Council discussed the common practice among organisations to budget annual contributions to an operating reserve that would eventually reach and be sustained at an amount equivalent to one average year of operations (i.e., ~\$32,000.00 for APCPS). The 2011 Financial forecast and Budget was passed by Council with an Operating Reserve target set for \$32,000.00.

As required on an annual basis:

I recommend that APCPS pass a motion to waive the requirement for a formal audit of 2011 finances.

The un-audited statement, provided by Marcia Herback CA, meets the needs of the Association and provides a financial summary consistent with general accounting practices.

It will be important at the 2011 AGM for the membership to consider and give direction to its Council about whether annual operating expenses should be self-sustaining and funded strictly through membership fees or whether additional revenues generated by the annual conference should be used to subsidize membership fees instead of being directed towards programming and member services.

Thank you to the Association membership for your continuing support. The vitality of our organisation continues to be reflected at our annual general meeting and conference, in the job opportunities for new planners, and achievements of practicing planners in Saskatchewan.

Ryan Walker PPS MCIP

## Communications/Public Relations Chair

APCPS represents planners in Saskatchewan and it is the voice of urban, rural and regional planning in the province. As such, it is important that APCPS is a recognized name and that the public is aware of our work in the planning world.

## Newsletter

A quarterly newsletter has been designed and published for the members of the Association. The content of the newsletter consists of new member information, Council items, news items and information on educational sessions and material.

#### World Town Planning Day

World Town Planning Day is an opportunity to promote a better understanding and awareness of Canadian Planners and planning to the local community and all levels of government. To celebrate the event, CIP, and the Affiliate Associations (including APCPS) work to create and deliver a poster. Anyone interested in obtaining a poster for display in their planning office should feel free to contact APCPS and one will be ordered on your behalf, free of charge.

Many Canadian planners and municipalities hold their own events on World Town Planning Day to educate and promote the value of planning within their communities. If you are holding an event and would like to share the details of the event, APCPS can help you spread the news.

#### Website

In the spring of 2009 a new APCPS website was launched to improve the delivery of service to the membership and the image of the APCPS. The website is currently meeting the needs of Council and the membership, however, if there are any comments regarding the level of satisfaction or direction on how the website can be improved to better meet the needs of our members, please forward those to the Communications Chair.

CIP is also looking at a redesign of their website, discussions are currently underway at the national level. If you have any suggestions or comments on how the CIP website could be improved please forward those to the Communications Chair.

# New Name

In 2009 a survey was sent to the membership with regards to changing the name of the Association to "Saskatchewan Professional Planners Institute" or "SPPI". The proposed name change was supported. As indicated in the Winter 2010 Newsletter, since the name change will also require bylaw changes, it was decided that the name change will be done at the same time as the other bylaw changes, which is scheduled for 2012.

# Re-Branding Ideas Welcome

Once the APCPS name is changed to the Saskatchewan Professional Planners Institute (SPPI) we will also need to "re-brand". A new logo will be needed as well as updates to our current materials including the website. A communications committee will be needed to assist with the re-branding. A call for committee members will go out this fall, all members who are interested in being a part of this task are encouraged to assist with the process.

## National Level

At the National level, the Communication Chair is also the APCPS representative on the CIP Communication's Committee. The functions of the Committee vary, but the Committee's main priority is to advise members of the development of communication materials and to market CIP and the profession to domestic and international audiences. This year the CIP Communication Committee met in Ottawa in April.

# Great Places in Canada

The special project for the National Level Communication's Committee was the Great Places in Canada Contest. This annual contest encourages people to nominate and vote for the place they love most in Canada. The competition is open to all Canadians and the purpose of the contest is to elevate the public's recognition of great planned places and planning in general.

This year there were three categories of great places – great public spaces, great neighbourhoods and great streets. Once a great place is nominated, the summary and pictures submitted by the nominator are posted on the website <a href="www.greatplacesincanada.ca">www.greatplacesincanada.ca</a>. Anyone who visits the website can vote for the place that they believe is the greatest in Canada. Voting and nominations are open for a couple of months. Once the nominations and voting has closed the Communications Committee short lists the greatmplaces in accordance with the contest criteria and the final decision is made by an independent committee, made up of members of CIP from across the country. First, second and third places are awarded in all three categories. Both the short listed great places (finalists) and the winners are posted on the website. The finalists from Saskatchewan include Broadway Avenue in Saskatoon (street), River Landing in Saskatoon (public place) and Kinsmen Park in Prince Albert (public place). Broadway Avenue in Saskatoon was declared the third greatest street in Canada and was awarded a plaque in an awards ceremony.

The Great Places in Canada Contest 2012 details will be announced later this fall. Don't miss your chance to nominate and vote for a great street, great public place or great neighbourhood. Details can be found on <a href="https://www.greatplacesincanada.ca">www.greatplacesincanada.ca</a>

Autumn Dawson PPS MCIP

# **Education Chair**

The APCPS Education and Program Committee provides advice to Council on education and programming activities. The Education and Program Committee was initiated in February 2009 and has 10 members. The committee is co-chaired by the APCPS Education and Program Chairs. The group canvassed employers of the professional learning needs of their planners and will also advise on CPL learning units and will provide feedback on CPL program communications.

Updating the APCPS CPL Program Guide with the goal of making it easier to navigate is currently being worked towards. The Education and Program Committee will be canvassed for ideas and the updated guide will include ideas from the CIP-CPL Committee work.

The following initiatives have been undertaken:

- A survey of employers to help define areas of focus for programming;
- Research to find webinars and workshops that are simple and easy ways to gain CPL;
- Organization and delivery of workshops and events by committee members;
- Feedback about the APCPS Annual Conference;
- Drafting of a recommendation to APCPS Council for a Planning Internship Program; and
- Initiation of an update to the APCPS CPL Program Guide which will recommend policy requirements to APCPS Council surrounding the delivery of CPL.

The APCPS Council would like to thank the past and present volunteer members on the Education and Program Committee for their participation:

- Lesley Anderson
- Karen Bolton
- Autumn Dawson
- Glen Grismer
- Dana Kripki
- Elisabeth Miller

- John Nanson
- Beatrice Regnier
- Lorne Sully
- Lenore Swystun
- Doug Daniels (Co-Chair)
- Kendra Raymond (Co-Chair)

# Regional and Urban Planning (RUP) Program

The Education Chair responsibilities include representing APCPS on the RUP Committee, organizing the RUP 413.0 Work Study Program, and coordination of annual reviews/intensive reviews of the RUP Program based on CIP policies.

The RUP 413.0 Work Study Program provides RUP students with practical planning experience. It is a non credit course and is 39 hours in length. Thank you to all who participated.

APCPS completed the periodic intensive review of the RUP Program in the spring 2011. The conclusions were that the RUP Program continues to meet all of the requirements and will continue to receive approved accreditation. This review has conducted in accordance with the requirements described in Volume 3 of the Canadian Institute of Planners Membership Manual.

The last full Intensive Review of RUP occurred in 2008. In addition to the major intensive review, APCPS is expected to conduct an annual review of planning degrees. Recognized degree programs are expected to submit a report that briefly addresses the existing Site Visit Committee Report observations, as well as the status of the CIP accreditation criteria. The details of the creation and delivery of the report can be discussed with APCPS representatives.

This review was conducted in conjunction with APCPS, CIP and the University of Saskatchewan to ensure that the course content and the administrative criteria fulfill the requirements for continued recognition by CIP. A Site Visit Committee was nominated by APCPS and endorsed by the CIP Membership Committee and the University of Saskatchewan. Members of the Site Visit Committee for 2011 included:

- Ms. Delaine Clyne MCIP (Chair)
- Ms. Paula Kotasek MCIP, President of APCPS
- Dr. Mitchell Kosny, Member of OPPI (CIP representative)

## Continuous Professional Learning (CPL Program)

The Education Chair is responsible for the implementation of the CPL Program and is the affiliate representative on the CIP National CPL Committee. All Provisional and Full Members must participate in the CPL Program to satisfy the requirements of membership.

For the 2010 CPL Program, APCPS had 150 provisional and full members and a compliance rate of 87% in the CPL Program as of January 17, 2011 and 100% to date. Compliance has been increasing since the program was implemented as members become more familiar with the program, as well as, improved communication and follow-up with non-compliant members.

APCPS has initiated a fine to those members who did not participate in the CPL program. Members who continued to be in non-compliance with the program as of June 30 were struck from the registry. In 2011, three non-compliant members were struck from the registry. Saskatchewan has a very high rate of compliance and is seen as a leader in mandatory CPL management.

Doug Daniels PPS MCIP

# **Program Chair**

The 2010 APCPS Conference was held at Elk Ridge Resort in Waskesiu from September 13-15, 2010. Having the conference in Waskesiu was a departure from the more recent traditional venues of Saskatoon and Regina, and provided the Conference Committee with some unique programming opportunities. The theme of the 2010 Conference was "Planning Futures: Our Rapidly Changing World" and was attended by more than 90 delegates. Over the course of three days delegates learned new skills and best practices relating to making the communities that we live and work in better through planning for today as well as tomorrow.

The highlight of the 2010 Conference was keynote speaker Larry Beasley, FCIP, who spoke about community building and Canadian Urbanism. His talk was very inspiring and illustrated ideas that can be put into place in both rural and urban communities, using real world examples. With the 2010 Conference taking place outside of Saskatoon or Regina, where many of us live and work, there were more opportunities for networking and socializing. The committee organized several different events to provide these opportunities, such as a potluck dinner on

Sunday evening, a scavenger hunt in the Waskesiu townsite on Monday followed by dinner at Pizza Petes.

Thank you to the members of the 2010 Conference Committee for all their hard work, time, and effort that they put into making the 2010 Conference a success!

One workshop was held in Saskatoon entitled Climate Change for Planners and was facilitated by Dwayne Keir. About 8 members turned out to learn about climate change and the tools planners can use to address this issue. More events are currently being planned, such as development appeals board training, project management, and others.

If there are any workshops or learning opportunities that members would like to see offered, please contact the program chair.

Kendra Raymond

# **Secretary**

The current Executive Council comprises eleven members and was formed in 2010 at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) in Elk Ridge. Seven new members were elected this past year to the Executive Council including Jason Kaptein, Ryan Walker, Sheldon Clarke, Jennifer Taylor, Doug Daniels, Karen Bolton and myself. Current Council portfolios are assigned as follows:

President: Paula Kotasek President Elect: Karen Bolton Treasurer: Ryan Walker Communications: Autumn Dawson Doug Daniels Education: Conference: Kendra Raymond Bill Delainey Secretary: Membership: Jennifer Taylor Members at Large: Sheldon Clarke

Jason Kaptein

Student Rep: Ian Gores

Council held nine meetings over the past year. In addition to its regular monthly teleconferences, Council met in Craik this past spring to discuss various topics related to the affairs of the Association including the potential effects of the adoption of new national membership and accreditation standards flowing from the "Planning for the Future" project. The full day meeting was highlighted by the attendance of the current CIP president Marni Cappe who actively participated in the day's discussions providing the CIP perspective.

As Secretary, I have been actively involved in the preparation of a new APCPS bylaw and Council policy manual intended to reflect and implement the "Planning for the Future" recommendations and with the intention of streamlining the management of the Association. The bylaw has been prepared for membership consideration at this year's AGM and work continues on a companion Council policy manual intended to provide additional policy guidance for the current and future Executive Council. It is expected that the Policy and Procedures Committee will be tasked with completing a review of the Community Planning Profession Act over the next few months in order to identify sections of the Act which may require amendment

for the Association to be compliant with recently adopted trade mobility standards, to respond to the new membership and accreditation standards, and to update its language to parallel other professional association legislation. It is likely that upon the conclusion of this review that several additional bylaw amendments will be brought forward for consideration by the membership.

This year there are potentially four positions open on Council for the next two-year term including two permanent Council positions presently held by Autumn Dawson and Kendra Raymond as well as the two one year member at large positions held by Sheldon Clarke and Jason Kaptein.

The past year has brought many challenges to members of the Executive Council and the coming term will be equally challenging as we move into the implementation phase of the "Planning for the Future" recommendations. I look forward to contributing positively to the administration of this professional association and encourage other members to also remain actively involved.

Bill Delainey PPS MCIP

# APCPS/CAPS Student Representative

In the 2010-2011 school year there were 91 students in the Regional and Urban Planning program at the University of Saskatchewan. Five of these students comprise the executive of the Planning Students Association, which is responsible for all social activities. The PSA will be planning social events for the upcoming school year and will inform the APCPS so members can participate.

In February, RUP and Indigenous Studies held a joint class in Mexico dealing with Indigenous planning issues. RUP 398.3 took place in February, 2011 and consisted of nine University of Saskatchewan students from RUP, Geography, and Native Studies.

Several students participated in the Geography 340.3 course and field trip to Prague, Czech Republic. The two-week course allowed students to observe the various architectural styles and street designs in Prague. The course took place in early May, 2011.

I was able to travel to St John's for the CIP Conference in July. It was a great experience not only to learn, but also to network with planners and academics. One such group I met was the organizing committee for the CAPS Conference which is being held in Vancouver from February 2-4. The PSA would like to send a group of representatives from the U of S to the conference so they can network and enjoy the educational experience.

Ian Goeres

# **Past Presidents**

1975-1976	Bob Linner PPS MCIP	1996-1998	Denton Yeo PPS MCIP
1976-1978	Ron Cope PPS MCIP	1998-2000	Ralph Leibel PPS MCIP
1978-1989	Dewell Linn	2000-2001	Diana Hawryluk PPS MCIP
1979-1980	Lorne Sully PPS MCIP	2001-2002	Andrew Hanna PPS MCIP
1980-1981	Walter McNeil PPS MCIP	2002-2003	Diana Hawryluk PPS MCIP
1982-1984	Peggy Clark	2002-2004	Tim Steuart PPS MCIP
1984-1986	Lehman Walker MCIP	2004-2005	Andrew J. Hanna PPS MCIP
1986-1988	Mohammad Afsar PPS MCIP	2005-2006	John Wolfenberg PPS MCIP
1988-1990	David Klippenstein PPS MCIP	2006-2008	Jim Walters PPS MCIP
1990-1992	Laurent Mougeot PPS MCIP	2008-2009	Bob Bjerke PPS MCIP
1992-1994	Tim Steuart PPS MCIP	2009-2010	Bob Bjerke PPS MCIP
1994-1996	John Wolfenberg PPS MCIP	2010-2011	Paula Kotasek PPS MCIP

# **Awards**

# The Andy Campbell Award

The Association of Professional Community Planners of Saskatchewan annually presents a \$200.00 award and a Certificate to a full-time fourth year student registered in the Regional and Urban Development Program. The student must be eligible for graduation and obtain the highest scholastic standing in the third and fourth year courses as designated by the College of Arts & Science. The recipient must also be a Student Member in standing with APCPS. Past recipients are:

Ronald Fournier	1995-1996	Jill Harriman
Felix Paul Hoehn	1996-1997	Livia Kellett
Donald G. Meikle	1997-1998	Carey Baker
Bill Holden	1998-1999	Kathy Coles
Catherine Holstlander	1999-2000	Felix Horne
Debbie Bryden	2000-2001	Lyla Peter
Paula Sali	2001-2002	Not awarded
Gordon Falk	2002-2003	Dana Irvine
Pennie Conacher	2003-2004	Not awarded
Edmund Kaufhold	2004-2005	Not awarded
Russell Dauk	2005-2006	Chelsea Jersak
Dwayne Whiteside	2006-2007	Leanne Delong
Jim Flath	2008-2009	Jordan Gasior
Brenda Ireland	2009-2010	
Ronald Fournier	2010-2011	Janelle Anderson
	Felix Paul Hoehn Donald G. Meikle Bill Holden Catherine Holstlander Debbie Bryden Paula Sali Gordon Falk Pennie Conacher Edmund Kaufhold Russell Dauk Dwayne Whiteside Jim Flath Brenda Ireland	Felix Paul Hoehn       1996-1997         Donald G. Meikle       1997-1998         Bill Holden       1998-1999         Catherine Holstlander       1999-2000         Debbie Bryden       2000-2001         Paula Sali       2001-2002         Gordon Falk       2002-2003         Pennie Conacher       2003-2004         Edmund Kaufhold       2004-2005         Russell Dauk       2005-2006         Dwayne Whiteside       2006-2007         Jim Flath       2008-2009         Brenda Ireland       2009-2010

# **Fraser-Gatrell Planning Awards**

These awards are designed to recognize the efforts of both members and non-members of APCPS as they promote and enhance community planning in our communities.

# Distinguished Contribution - Planner

Presented to a member of APCPS deserving of such recognition as a result of major achievement in one or more of the following areas:

- i. Long time service and contribution to the Planning Profession;
- ii. Work-related achievements including development plans, redevelopment projects, regional plans, policy plans and other projects where the planning process has been exercised:
- iii. Public participation including community service, education, committee/task force work, dispute resolution and other related work involving the enhancement of planning from a public perspective.

1992	Dr. J. H. Richards	2002	Lorne Sully
1998	H.E. Wellman	2009	Glen Grismer
1999	Ray Crozier	2010	Larry Billett

# Citizen's Planning Award

This award is presented to a person who is not a member of APCPS but has made a significant contribution to the promotion of Planning. The potential recipient could be a politician, educator, journalist, civil servant, or any other person who has directly enhanced the planning profession.

1993	Ralph K. Leibel Sr	. 2001	Dr. Edmond H. Dale
1995	Kate Waygood	2003	Joseph Bourgault
1996	Ken Redekopp	2004	Mitch Holash
1997	Tom Morgan	2005	Bev Robertson
1998	Lucy M. Eley	2006	Fred Sutter
1999	Ned Kosteniuk	2008	Ken Achs
2000	Stu MacFadden		

# Fraser-Gatrell Memorial Scholarship

The Fraser–Gatrell Memorial Scholarship has been endowed in memory of two Saskatchewan community planners who were tragically killed in northern Saskatchewan in 1993. The late Tom Fraser was the manager of the Provincial Government's Northern Community Planning office. The late Darren Gatrell was an excellent student who graduated from the RUD program in 1992 and had began his career in the same office.

The 'Fraser-Gatrell Memorial Scholarship Award' is intended to be funded for fifteen years, through annual earnings of a trust established by donors to be awarded by the University of Saskatchewan. The value of the Scholarship is estimated at \$1,200, based on University practices regarding trust value preservation.

Selection for the award is based on a completed project or paper dealing with planning or development in Canada, north of the 53<sup>rd</sup> parallel, on overall achievement of the applicants, and on their community involvement. Applicants for the scholarship award may include individual students or groups of students, full-time in RUD, who submit an urban design project or research paper on urban, regional or community planning in Northern Canada.

The Selection Committee, comprised of the Dean of the College of Arts and Science, and representatives from the RUD Administrative Committee and APCPS/CIP, determines the winning candidate. All competition entries must be submitted to the RUD Chair in three copies. RUD does not commit itself to grant the award if no deserving submissions are made in a particular year. The deadline for submissions of entries for the Fraser-Gatrell Memorial Scholarship Award is the last working day February of each academic year.